
 
 

 

March 24, 2022         

             

Councillor Ana Bailão 

Chair, Planning and Housing Committee 

City of Toronto 

 

Dear Chair and Members:  

 

RE: SHORT TERM RENTAL UPDATE AND REGULATIONS ENFORCEMENT 

 

Firstly, allow me to express my gratitude to see this matter taken up by the committee following 

the various media reports regarding Toronto’s short-term rental enforcement operations that 

emerged following publication of my blogTO article on the subject earlier this month.  

 

The comment I wish to make is that media reports surrounding this issue have, in my view, glossed 

over the crux of the matter, which is that Executive Director Grant and other Municipal Licensing 

and Standards (“MLS”) personnel are pursuing an enforcement policy that ignores the clear 

wording of Chapter 547 of the Toronto Municipal Code.  

 

They refuse to bring charges against ghost hotel owners who facilitate illegal short-term rentals by 

contracting out operator duties to third-party managers, alleging that the bylaw will not permit 

such charges. Executive Director Grant and other MLS personnel alleging this are wrong, and I 

believe they know they are wrong.  

 

As noted in my article, several provisions of Chapter 547 permit charges to brought against owners 

who “facilitate” illegal short-term rentals by expressly contracting out management and operator 

duties:  

 

• The definition in s. 547-1.1 of a “Short-Term Rental Company” that can be charged for 

violating the bylaw clearly encompasses persons, such as property owners, who 

“facilitate[]…short-term rental reservations” in concert with others for financial gain; 

 

• s. 547-1.3(A) states that “[n]o person shall…facilitate the…rental of…a short-term rental 

if its operator is not registered”; and 
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• s. 547-1.3(B) states that “[e]very person who…facilitates the…rental of…a short-term 

rental shall verify…that the short-term rental operator is registered”. 

 

Though recent media reports on this matter never quoted Executive Director Grant expressing in 

clear terms the view that the bylaw will not permit charges against such ghost hotel owners, he 

and other MLS personnel have made it clear in their communications with me (see Exhibit A). 

 

Third-party short-term rental operators are not often the ones exacerbating Toronto’s housing crisis 

by purchasing properties to operate as ghost hotels. Ghost hotel owners are doing that. Failure to 

bring charges against them for facilitating illegal short-term rentals through third-parties is 

therefore an absurd policy that avoids dealing with the root of the problem. 

 

As I wrote in my article, Executive Director Grant and MLS personnel must either correct this 

policy to comply with the actual text of the bylaw, or they should be replaced by personnel capable 

of carrying out the explicit duties of their division. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Marc Z. Goldgrub 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Marc Goldgrub <goldgrub@law.cardozo.yu.edu>

Follow-Up Re: 752 Richmond St. W
3 messages

Marc Goldgrub <goldgrub@law.cardozo.yu.edu> Mon, Aug 30, 2021 at 5:36 PM
To: Carleton Grant <carleton.grant@toronto.ca>
Cc: Susan Quach <susan.quach@gmail.com>, Andrei Ordine <andrei.ordine@gmail.com>, "Glover-CO, Chris" <CGlover-CO@ndp.on.ca>, Councillor Cressy <councillor_cressy@toronto.ca>, Councillor Bailao
<councillor_bailao@toronto.ca>, Councillor Fletcher <councillor_fletcher@toronto.ca>, Councillor Mike Layton <councillor_layton@toronto.ca>, Mayor Tory <mayor_tory@toronto.ca>, Councillor Wongtam
<councillor_wongtam@toronto.ca>, Planning and Housing <phc@toronto.ca>

Hi Carleton,

I'm following up on our call from the other week regarding imposing liability on property owners who contract out illegal short-term rental management. Specifically with regard to Ms. Mahima Poddar, the former
owner of the property at 752 Richmond St. W. 

Per our conversation, it is the position of the Richmond Niagara Neighbourhood Association that Chapter 547 of the municipal code clearly permits the city to charge such property owners as facilitating short-term
rentals for financial benefit. Accordingly, MLS's current policy of avoiding charges against property owners in this context is untenable and must be corrected. 

Please let us know if any progress has been made on this matter.

Thank you,
MZG

-- 
Marc Goldgrub, J.D., LL.M.
University of Toronto | Global Professional LL.M., Class of 2019
Benjamin N. Cardozo School of Law | J.D., Class of 2017
University of Toronto | B.A. Hon., Class of 2012

Carleton Grant <Carleton.Grant@toronto.ca> Tue, Aug 31, 2021 at 9:48 AM
To: Marc Goldgrub < >

Marc,

 

Chapter 547, Licensing and Registration of Short-Term Rentals requires that the operator of a short-term rental obtain a registration from the City to carry out this activity.

 

Chapter 547 does not contain any provision that would allow an owner to be charged for permitting short-term rental activity at their property. This is for several reasons, including that
short-term rentals are a legal use in Toronto, owners may have limited abilities to enforce private contractual rights (assuming they exist), and it is generally more effective to target
short-term rental companies and operators to achieve compliance.

 

The by-law defines “Operator” is as “Any person who operates a short-term rental”.

 

While it may be possible to charge the owner of a property with certain offences if he or she can be deemed the “operator” of the short-term rental, this depends on the evidence that is
available in each case and is not the focus of the by-law or MLS’ enforcement resources. The policy and the bylaw were developed with the main enforcement tool being de-listing the
property from the short term rental platform.  My understanding is that here, the operator at 752 Richmond St. West was pursued by enforcement staff and that the use of the property
as a problematic short-term rental has now ended, which is the goal of the licensing regime. I can confirm that we did revoke the STR permit and 7 charges were laid in relation to this
particular address.

 

I would also note that the short-term rental licensing regime came into effect in late, 2020. MLS is still in the process of collecting first-year data from short-term rental companies and
developing tools that will allow for more effective enforcement, primarily by forcing short-term rental companies to de-list advertisements by unregistered operators.

 

Carleton

[Quoted text hidden]

Marc Goldgrub <goldgrub@law.cardozo.yu.edu> Wed, Sep 1, 2021 at 6:18 PM
To: Carleton Grant <Carleton.Grant@toronto.ca>
Cc: Susan Quach <susan.quach@gmail.com>, Andrei Ordine <andrei.ordine@gmail.com>, "Glover-CO, Chris" <CGlover-CO@ndp.on.ca>, Councillor Bailao <councillor_bailao@toronto.ca>, Councillor Cressy
<councillor_cressy@toronto.ca>, Councillor Mike Layton <councillor_layton@toronto.ca>, Mayor Tory <mayor_tory@toronto.ca>, Planning and Housing <phc@toronto.ca>, Councillor Fletcher
<councillor_fletcher@toronto.ca>, Councillor Wongtam <councillor_wongtam@toronto.ca>

Carleton,

I will keep this brief, as I am confident you and MLS are intelligent enough to know that what you have written is thoroughly absurd. 

Obviously where an owner is ultimately responsible for facilitating rentals - including through and with the help of contracted subordinate parties - they can be held liable under the statute as a Short-Term Rental
Company or otherwise someone who acts to "facilitate" the various actions prohibited under the statute. You are clearly aware of this. 

What is also clear is that your department has chosen to narrowly interpret a bylaw written in broad terms, and your purpose in doing so appears to be to protect ghost hotel property owners from
liability - presumably for political reasons. 

We will continue moving this issue upward to the Mayor's office, and if that's where this order comes from, we will publicize the fact that the city, and specifically you and your department, have deliberately chosen
to shield ghost hotel owners from liability during a housing crisis. 

We will carry forward with our campaign until this policy of non-enforcement is corrected.

Thank you,
MZG

[Quoted text hidden]


